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Directors’ report

The directors present thewr report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 These
financial statements have been prepared under International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Umion

Results and dividends

The profit for the year after taxation amounted to £5,668,000 (2012 — £9,743,000) The directors do not
recommend the payment of a final dividend (2012 — £ml)

Principal activity and review of the business

BrightHouse offers customers access to high-quality branded household goods on affordable weekly
payments via 280 stores across the UK The Group undertakes a bespoke creditworthiness assessment,
incorporating third party data, combined with an affordability check atlowang customers with impaired
credit records access to goods New customers build an internal credit rating through ‘on ume’ payment
allowing them to expand the range of products they have access to Customers sign a hire purchase
agreement and pay no deposit Associated insurance products deliver peace of mind through protection
from theft and accidental damage plus a full service option which also allows the customer to return the
goods, cancel agreements and restart a new agreement with their equity protected

Strategy

The strategy adopted during the year has been to continue to build on cur market position and attract new
customers This has been done by offering

High-quality desirable branded houschold goods

Competitive pricing benchmarked against High Street retailers
Strong availability of core hines 1n store

High standard of customer service n store and 1n the home
Effective and conststent promotion of the brand and proposition
Targeted credit assessments

In addition the Group has continued to broaden the reach of the chain wvia the new store opening
programme 27 new stores were opened in the year to take the total to 280 at year end (25 new stores
opened 1n 2011/12)

Financial performance
The group financial performance for the year 1s summansed as follows

2013 2012 2013 vs 2012

£000 £000 £060 %
Revenue 296,957 266,479 30,478 11 44
Gross profit 165,924 149,552 16,372 1095
Net operating expenses (130,632) (115,007 (15,625) (13 59)
Statutory operating profit 35,292 34,545 747 216
Adjusted operating profit 36,241 33,592 2,649 789
Gross profit margin 55 9% 56 1%
Adjusted profit before taxation 15,586 11,536 4,050 3511
Adjusted profit afier taxation 11,457 9,019 2,438 2703

Note Adjusted results relate to pre exceptional items
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Principal activity and review of the business (continued)
Trading Environment

2013 was a challenging trading environment with customers under pressure from continued high inflation
rates, low wage growth and considerable uncertainty 1n the employment market In addition, the
Government’s much heralded changes to the welfare system have increased uncertainty for a significant
portion of BrightHouse customers who are completely or partially reliant upon benefits This environment
leads consumers to be cautious when purchasing large ticket items for the home and reluctant to extend
themselves when signing up to a 3 year credit agreement The effective conversion of customer demand 1n
store and the ngorous application of our credit process and the determunation to maximise the
attractiveness of the proposition to the customer, enabled the company to mamntain 1its positive financial
momentum

EBITdA

The pnmary profit measure used by management of the Group 15 EBITAA before exceptional items
EBITdA before exceptional tems (defined as operating profit before depreciation of fixtures, equipment
and vehicles, amortisation and certain one off 1tems) has improved by 10 8% from £44 6m 1n 2011/12 to
£49 4m 1n 2012/13 A reconciliation of EBITdA before exceptional 1tems to operating profit 15 provided
below

2013 2012

£000 £000
BrightHouse Group Limited EBITdA before exceptional items 49,396 44,571
Depreciation of fixtures, equipment and vehcles and amortisation (13,155) (10,979)
Exceptional items
QOut of period indirect tax charges and provistons (234) 1,166
Professional fees mcurred during refinancing - 213
Exceptional EBT bonus award (715) -
BrightHouse Group Limuted reported operating profit 35,292 34,545

The exceptional items relate to the net settlement of outstanding indirect tax numbers, costs incurred
dunng the refinancing of the debt facilities undertaken tn 2012 and an exceptional bonus award

Key performance indicators
Customer numbers

The revenue 1s dniven by the number of customers and their average spend with BrightHouse The strategy
outlined above reflects the drive to grow the customer base with new customers whilst retaiming existing
customners and mcreasing the average spend per customer Customer numbers have grown by 8 6% up
from 227,200 1n 2011/12 to 246,800 m 2012/13 Average revenue per customer per month has nsen by
£99 70 to £104 49, an increase of 4 8%

Like-for-like revenue

Analysing revenue by store reveals the strong like-for-like revenue performance Like-for-like revenue 1s
up 8 3% in 2012/13, compared with a 7 4% increase 1 2011/12 Like-for-like analysis excludes newly
opened stores Stores are included 1n this measure when the results for two complete trading years are
available Stores take 7 years to reach matunty and as at March 2013, 94 stores were over 2 years old but
under 8 years old
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New stores

The new store opening programme continued 1n 2012/13 with 27 stores opeming duning the year (2011/12
25 stores) Demographic analysis shows a potential market of 450 stores 1 the UK when combined with
an effective ecommerce strategy

Bad debt

BrightHouse seeks to ensure that customers can afford the repayments for goods supphed All customers
sign up 1n a store using a comprehensive credit check and a personal face to face assessment which 1s
signed off by the store manager Where customers face difficulties, stores have a range of options to retain
the customer and ultimately ensure they take ownership of the goods Despite the difficult economic
conditions, this relationship method has enabled the bad debt charge as a percentage of turnover to be
lowered to 8 0% versus 8 1% in the previous year

Gross margin

Gross margin decreased from 56 1% mn 2011/12 to 559% wn 2012/13 BnghtHouse seeks to offer
exceptional value for money across the proposition and product range The lughly competitive nature of
the UK High Street and the strengthened benchmarking process and price promuse adopted by the
company has drniven margins lower In addition the challenging trading environment has necessitated the
increased use of discounts and promotions to attract customers

Principal risks and uncertainties

The directors consider that BrightHouse has adopted a thorough nsk management process that involves
the formal review of all the nsks 1denufied below Board committees are 1n place to momitor and mitigate
such risks

Regulation and compliance

BrightHouse operates n a regulated market and has established processes and policies for ensuring its
compliance with all applicable legislation and regulation Staff participate 1n 2 comprehensive programme
of tramning designed to ensure that they understand the processes and policies that the directors have
established Independent internal and external parties are used to fully measure the comphance across all
key areas of regulation The company monitors and actively participates n the regulatory debate via its
membership of trade associations and through its team of specialist advisors The management ensure
that all relevant changes are anticipated and effectively incorporated mto working practices

Staff capabilities

A key asset of the Group s uts staff BrnghtHouse recognises that 1t must continue to attract, retain and
motivate the best staff with the nght capabilities at all levels of the business BrightHouse reviews 1ts staff
pohcies regularly and 15 committed to investing n traming, development, succession planning and
appropniate financial mcentives for staff

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liqudity nsk via strong cash forecasting processes to ensure sufficient funds are
available The company completed a successful refinancing in the 2012 financial year The previous
semor and mezzanine faciliies were replaced with new all semor facihties from three banks The new
facilities compnise £70m 3 to 5 year largely non-amortising facihties which are fully drawn and a £30m 3
year revolving credit facility The directors believe the faciliies contain sufficient headroom for the
ambitions of the business and the covenants are appropniate and support growth At the year end, the total
undrawn amount on this facility was £25 6m and all covenants have been met Interest rate and exchange
rate risks are managed by structured Treasury processes
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Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

The Group are at an advanced stage to replace the existing debt faciities Accordingly, the Group have
mcurred exceptional finance costs of £5 4m relating to the acceleration of the amortisation of existing loan
transaction costs and the recyching of losses from equity relating to interest rate swaps which are no longer
considered effective Professional fees to be incurred on new debt facilities have been recogmsed as a
£8 3m other recervable and a £8 3m other payable These fees are expected to be amortised over the term
of the new facility Should this new facility not matenialise, the Group will mcur costs of £1 7Tm As
detailed 1 note 20 of the financial statements, the terms of the current facilities provide adequate hquidity
for the Group to continue as a going concern

Credit risk

BrightHouse offers customers the ability to pay for goods over one to three years based upon 1ts bespoke
credit assessment This assessment and the debt management processes are designed to prevent nsing
defaults The company has progressively refined 1ts assessment process and collections miatives to
counteract the tough economic circumstances affecting customers

Economic risk
BnightHouse customers are subject to impacts from the macroeconomic environment including

government spending and benefits policy BnghtHouse has to adopt a coherent commercial strategy whach
reflects the impact of the macroeconomic policy on 1ts customer

Reputational risk

The company 15 commutted to bemg transparent i 1ts communications with colleagues, customers,
supplters and the broader business commumty BnghtHouse actively ensures 1t holds the highest
standards of corporate governance and acts to maintain 1ts reputation

Corporate responsibility
The group has 1dentified five main areas of corporate responsibility, risk and opportumty as

Fair treatment of customers and suppliers
Colleague welfare

Community involvement

Ethical trading

Environmental responsibility

A review process exists to ensure progress continues to be made
Fair treatment of customers and supphers

BrightHouse customers expect good quality products that meet all safety requirements and have been
manufactured to high ethical standards BrnightHouse aims to deal honestly with customers and suppliers,
secuning their loyalty and trust by providing outstanding choice, value and service

Responsible lender

BrightHouse aims to deliver a fnendly and flexible service for its customers whilst acting responsibly by
lending within customer affordability levels Before offening agreements to new customers, BrightHouse
undertakes a ngorous assessment of thewr ability to pay and their track record with other lenders Once
they have an agreement, customers build a lustory of payments and BrnightHouse lends aganst that profile
Sales advisors are tramed to understand an individual customer’s financital capability and the
consequential affordability of products

In cooperation with a debt charity, the company has developed 1its lending charter which details the
commutment to fairness and responsible lending A review of the charter and the policies for sales and
debt management 1s penodically undertaken by an independent third party The company 1s commutted to
supporting those who have difficultues making payments Our operations are designed to support those 1n
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Corporate responsibhility (continued)

difficulty and, when appropnate, the business will signpost borrowers towards providers of free,
independent debt advice

Transparency in all our dealings

The Group aims to achieve clear and consistent communication with all stakeholders and honour its
promuses  BrightHouse 1s committed to ensunng that documents use language that 1s simple and
understandable for customers

Colleague welfare

BnightHouse aspires to become a recogmsed “employer of choice” within 1ts sector, with a workforce that
15 representative of the communities 1t serves The Group stnives to achieve an environment that
encourages mutual respect and teamwork, where personal performance matters and colleagues are
encouraged to develop and reach their full potential

Health and safety

BrightHouse fully recogruses and complies with the duties placed upon 1t under the Health and Safety at
Work Act 1974 and all other relevant legislation to ensure a safe and healthy working environment It also
recognises the duty 1t has not only to 1ts staff, but also to customers, contractors, visitors and any others
who may be affected by its activities The Group adopts the principle of zero tolerance with regard to
accident prevention

Learning and development

The directors are commutted to encouraging the continuous development of colleagues with the objective
of optimusing the overall performance of the business Emphasis 1s placed on work-based learning, with
the provision of development opportumties supported by appropriate coaching and mentoring

Equal opportunities

BrightHouse values the diversity of its workforce The Group 1s an equal opportunities employer and
works hard to maintam an open and honest working environment, recogrusing the contribution everyone
can make to the business Career progression for existing or potential colleagues 1s assessed only on the
grounds of performance and aptitude

Colleague engagement

BrghtHouse wants to listen and learn from 1ts colleagues, and this year the business undertook 1ts second
employee engagement survey The results highlighted both areas of employee sausfaction, and areas for
improvement Detailed action plans based on the findings of the survey were developed and implemented
at naticnal, divisional and regional level A further survey will be carred out dunng 2013

Community involvement

BnightHouse stores are located in high streets across the UK The Group endeavours to be a “good
neighbour” 1n positively exercising our responstbilities towards the wider community

Charitable causes

During the year BrightHouse colleagues worked to raise funds for the business sponsored chanty the
NSPCC The NSPCC chanty exists to protect children from cruelty, support vulnerable familes,
campatgn for changes to the law and raise awarcness about abuse Across the country, BnghtHouse
colleagues have energetically led or participated 1n fundraising events BnghtHouse has also supported
Credit Action, Retail Trust and Sports Aud
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Corporate responsibility (continued)
Retail trust

Retail Trust 1s 2 natonal chanty, which offers a confidential helpline, financial assistance and other
practical help and support It serves employees, former employees (and families) of the UK retail industry
BrnightHouse 1s a supporter and active participant in Retail Trust fundraising

Ethical trading

Partnership working 1s at the heart of the BnghtHouse business The Group seeks to conduct 1ts business
with mntegnity and respect honouring the terms and conditions of every business agreement Through
these relationships, the Group aims to provide customer confidence 1n its products, ensuring that they are
of a consistently high quality and that everyone in the supply chain 1s treated with honesty, fairness and
respect

Environmental responsibifity

BrightHouse 1s commutted to working continuously, 1n collaboration wath 1ts partners and colleagues, to
contribute positively to environmental sustainability The Group actively explores ways to reduce 1its eco-
footprint through employing imtiatives designed to limit 1ts impact on the environment, including ongoing
reviews of purchasing policies and finding new opportunities to recycle or redeploy products and
matenals

Packaging recycling

Whenever possible, the major packaging constituents in BrightHouse’s busmess - cardboard, paper,
plastics and polystyrene — are taken back to the Group’s National Distnibution Centre 1n Manchester The
matenals are then compacted and passed to recychng businesses for processing

Product refurbishment

As part of the Group’s normal rent-to-own business process, customers who have taken out the requisite
insurance have the night to return products at any time Wherever possible, these products are refurbished
to a hugh standard and re-sold as Quahty Refurbished items Products which are beyond economuc repair
are canmbalised for spare parts The remainder are processed for recycling BrnightHouse adopts a sumular
approach to redundant IT equipment, 1n order to mimimise environmentally unfriendly waste

Environment-friendly products

The Energy Saving Trust recogmses apphances that are energy-efficient 100% of BrightHouse's laundry
products achieved thus standard

Financial instruments

The Group's financial nsk management objectives and policies are discussed n note 20 to these financial
statements

Going concern

The Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and posttion are set out in the Business Review section of the Directors’ Report on pages 2 to
4 The principal nsks and uncertamnties on pages 4 and 5 include the Group’s objectives, policies and
processes for managung regulation, its staff, its financial, credit and economuc risk

The directors have an expectation that the Group shall be able to operate withun the level of 1ts current
facilities, details of which are included in notes i6 and 20 of the financial statements Accordingly, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the group financial statements
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Directors
The directors who served during the year were those listed below

J L McKee

G M O Dawvid
R APym

D J Lamb

The beard of BrightHouse Group Limited compnses two non-executive directors Richard Pym as
chairman and David Lamb as Vision Capital LLP nvestor duector The two executive directors are Leo
McKee and Giles David

Political and charitable contributions

The group made chantable contnbutions of £127,000 (2012 — £186,000) during the year No donations
were made to political orgamsations during the year (2012 — £ml) The staff and customers of
BrightHouse Limited have participated 1n extensive fundraising activities for the sponsored chanty (the
NSPCC)

Policy and practice on payment of creditors

It s the policy of BrightHouse to pay 1its supphers on a timely basis and n accordance with agreed
payment terms The trade creditors of BrightHouse at 31 March 2013 were equivalent to 30 8 days (2012
— 25 4 days) of purchases, based on the average daily amount invoiced by suppliers dunng the year

Walker report

On 20 November 2007 Sir David Walker published his ‘Guidelines for Disclosure and Transparency m
Private Equity” (the Walker Report) This report has been prepared in the context of those
recommendations Further information 1s avalable on the company website at
www brighthousegroup com

Disclosure of information to the auditors

So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving the report 1s aware, there 15 no relevant
audit information needed by the auditor in connection with prepanng its report, of wiich the auditor 1s
unaware Having made enquiries of fellow directors and the group’s auditor, each director has taken all
the steps that he 1s obliged to take as a director in order to make lumself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditor 1s aware of that information

Auditors

Persuant to section 487 of the Compames Act 2006, the auditors will be deemed to be reappointed and
Emnst and Young LLP will therefore continue 1n office

By order of the Board

D Harwood 5 Hercules Way
Secretary Leavesden Park
22 Apnl 2013 Watford

WD25 7GS
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for prepanng the group and parent company report and financial statements
en accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare group and parent company financial statements for each
financial year Under that law the directors are requured to prepare the group and parent company financial
statements 1in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union and applicable law Under company law the directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group
and parent company and of the profit or loss of the group for that pertod In preparing each of the group
and parent company financial statements, the directors are required to

s  present fairly the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the parent company,

. select suitable accounting policies 1n accordance with IAS8 Accounting policies, Changes in
Accounung Esttmates and errors and then apply them consistently,

e  present wnformation, mcluding accounting pohcies, 1n a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information,

»  make judgments that are reasonable,

¢  provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRS as adopted
by the European Union 1s sufficient to enable users to undersiand the impact of particular
transactions, other events and conditions on the company’s financial position and financial
performance, and

s  state whether the parent company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explamned
in the financial statements

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the group and parent company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the group and parent company and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
uregularnties




Independent auditors’ report
to the members of BrightHouse Group Plc (formerly BrightHouse Group Limited)

We have audited the financial statements of BrightHouse Group Limited for the year ended 31 March
2013 which compnse the Group Income Statement, the Group and Parent Company Statement of
Financial Position, the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Group and Parent Company
Statement of Changes 1n Equity, the Group and Parent Company Statement of Cash Flow and the related
notes 1 to 33 The financial reporting framework that has been apphed n their preparation is applicable
law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umon and, as
regards the parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisiens of the
Companies Act 2006

Thas report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them 1n an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To
the fullest extent permutted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opimons we
have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explamed more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 9, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opimion on the financial statements m accordance
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures mn the financial statements
sufficient to grve reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are
approprate to the group’s and the parent company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors,
and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-
financial information n the report and financial statements to identify matenal inconsistencies wath the
audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements

Int our opuuion

» the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent
company’s affairs as at 31 March 2013 and of the group’s profit for the year then ended,

e the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Un:on,

s the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Compames
Act 2006, and

# the financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act
2006

10




Independent auditors’ report
to the members of BrightHouse Group Plc (formerly BrightHouse Group Limited)

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opimion the information given 1n the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report 1n respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you 1f, 1n our opimeon

® adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been recerved from branches not visited by us, or

¢ the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns,
or

e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneranon specified by law are not made, or

® we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Gk Yo

Andrew Clewer (Semor statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Erst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

Luton

22 April 2013

11
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Group income statement
for the year ended 31 March 2013

Year ending 31 March 2013 Year ending 31 March 2012
Before Before
exceptional exceptional exceptional exceptional
items ems Total items ems Total
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue 4 296,957 - 296,957 266,479 - 266,479
Cost of sales (131,033) —  (131,033)  (116,927) - (116927
Gross profit 165,924 - 165,924 149,552 - 149,552
Operating expenses (129,683) (949) (130,632) (115,960) 953 (115,007)
Operating profit 5 36,241 (949) 35,292 33,592 953 34,545
Finance income 8 464 - 464 732 - 732
Finance expenses 8 (21,119) (6,356) (27,475) (22,788) - (22,788)
Profit before taxation 15,586 (7,305) 8,281 11,536 953 12,489
Tax (charge) / credit 9 (4,129) 1,516 (2,613) (2,517) (229) (2,746)
Profit for the year 11,457 (5,789) 5,668 9,019 724 9,743
The results shown above all relate to continuing activities
Group statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2013
2013 2012
£000 £000
Profit for the year
5,668 9,743
Other comprehensive iIncome
Cash flow hedges
Gams / (losses) taken to equity (889) (1,785)
Ineffective portion transferred to income statement 2,674 -
Tax on cash flow hedges 187 428
Tax on meffective portion transferred to income statement (615) -
Other comprehensive income for the year net of tax 1,357 (1,357)
Total comprehensive income for the year net of tax 7,025 8,386

12
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Group statement of financial position
at 31 March 2013

2013 2012
Notes £600 £000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 159,241 134,571
Intangible assets 11 83,026 84,890
Trade and other receivables 14 15,745 14,089
Deferred tax assets 12 10,537 12913

268,549 246,463

Current assets

Inventones 13 8,865 11,639
Trade and other receivables 14 43,408 29,211
Cash and cash equivalents 15 10,873 8,579
Financial assets 16 180 -
63,326 49429
Total assets 331,875 205,892
Current liabiiities
Trade and other payables 17 57,622 36,666
Financial habilities 16 2,974 2,038
Current tax payable 1,153 985
61,749 39,689

Non-current Iiabilities
Financial habilities 16 228,252 221,939

228,252 221,939

Total liabiities 290,001 261,628

Net assets 41,874 34,264

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

Share capital 19 9 13
Share premium 6,592 6,437
Capital redemption reserve 57 52
Own shares reserve (286) -
Retained earmings 35,502 27,762
Total equity 41,874 34,264

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 22 Apnil 2013 and were signed on

ANV

G M O David
Director

13




Group statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 March 2013

Capital

Share Share  Hedging Own  Retamed redemption Total

capital premiurn TesServe shares  earmungs reserve equaty

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Atl Apnil 2011 65 6,592 — - 19,376 - 26,033
Profit for the year - - - - 9,743 - 9,743
Other comprehensive income - - (1,357) - - - (1,357)
Sale of own shares - (135 - — - - (155)
Cancelled shares (52) - - - - 52 -
At] Apnil 2012 13 6,437 (1,357) - 29,119 52 34,264
Profit for the year - - - — 5,668 - 5,668
Other comprehensive inceme - - 1,357 — - — 1,357
Issue / purchase of shares 1 155 - (286) - — (130)
Sale of treasury shares - - - - 715 — 715
Cancelled shares (5) - - - - 5 -
At 31 March 2013 9 6,592 - (286) 35,502 57 41,874

14
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Group statement of cash flows
at 31 March 2013

Restated Restared
Notes 2013 2012 2011
£000 £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 5,668 9,743 12,292
Adjustments for
Sales proceeds from sales of rental assets 2,641 2,299 1,970
Depreciation 105,497 93,279 76,783
Amortisation of intangible assets 5,148 4.360 3,418
Financial income (464) (732) (83)
Financial expense 27,475 22,788 23,162
Profit on rental assets sold to customers (1,267) (1,050) (676)
Rental assets written off as obsolete or not recoverable
from defaultng customers 17,687 15,498 13,614
Purchase of rental assets (139,475) (111,253) (105,068)
Taxation 2,613 2,746 (2,172)
Operating cash inflow before changes in working capital 25,523 37,678 23,240
Increase 1n trade and other receivables (15,839} (4,415) (10,020)
Decrease / (increase) in tnventories 2,774 (4,141) (2,336)
Increase mn trade and other payables 20,669 1,524 6,152
Cash generated from operations 33,127 30,646 17,036
Tax paid 497) (486) (1,113)
Net cash flow from operating activities 32,630 30,160 15,923
Cash flows from investing acfivities
Interest received 17 31 83
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (9,753) (10,236) (7,786)
Payments to acquire intangible assets (3,284) (3,080) (4,617}
Net cash from investing activities (13,020) (13,285) (12,320)
Cash flows from financing activities
New RCF semor loan - 80,000 -
Repayment of revolving credit facility mezzarune loan - (30,117) -
Repayment of revolving credit facility semor loan (6,300) (38,220) (9,015
Repayment of finance lease and hire purchase contracts - (263) (437)
Repayment of unsecured loan stock (6,792) (15,000) -
Proceeds / (purchase) of new shares 156 (155) 150
Financing costs (5.095) (6,078) {5,335)
Loan arrangement fees / financing costs - (5,335) (2,000)
Proceeds from sale of shares by EBT 715 - -
Net cash flow from financing activities (17,316) (15,168) (16,637)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,294 1,707 (13,034)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 Apnl 8,579 6,872 19,906
Cash and cash equivatents at 31 March 15 10,873 8,579 6,872
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Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Accounting policies
General information

BrightHouse Group Limited 15 a limuted company (“company”) incorporated in the Umted Kingdom
under the Compames Act 2006 (registration number 06250176) The Company is domiciled in the United
Kingdom and 1ts registered address 1s 3 Hercules Way, Leavesden, Watford, WD25 7GS

Authonsation of financial statements and statement of compliance with IFRS

The financial statements of BrightHouse Group Limited and its subsidianies for the year ended 31 March
2013 were authonsed for 1ssue on 22 Apnl 2013 by the board of directors and the balance sheet signed on
the board’s behalf by Giles David The Group s financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Commuttee (“IFRIC™) interpretations as endorsed by the European Union, and with those
parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to Companies reporting under [FRS

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of BrnightHouse Group Limited and 1ts subsidianes (‘the Group™)
are approved by the directors and prepared 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted for use in the European Umon (“EU”) (“Adopted IFRSs”) The financial statements are
presented 1n Sterhing and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£'000) except where
otherwise indicated

Restatement of the Group Statement of Cash Flows

Subsequent to the issuance of the Group financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2012, the
Group determuned that changes were required to enhance the understanding of the Group’s cash flows
Accordingly, additional disclosures of proceeds from the sale of rental assets and profit on rental assets
sold to customers have been included n the operating cash flow Purchase of rental assets has been
reclassified from investing activities to operating cash flow to comply with IAS 7 — Statement of Cash
Flows In addition the classification of interest and similar payments has been changed from operating to
financing cash flows

Restated Original Restated Original

2012 2012 2011 2011

£000 £000 £000 £000
Cash flow from operating acivities 30,160 130,914 15,923 114,505
Cash flow from 1nvesting activities (13,285) (125,452} {12,320) (118,937)
Cash flow from financing activities (15,168) (3,755 (16,637) (8,602)
Net increase / (decrease) m cash and equivalents 1,707 1,707 (13,034) (13,034)

A summary of the Group's accounting policies are set out below

Group financial statements

Subsidianes are entities controlled by the Group Control exists when the Group has the power to govern
the financial and operating pelicies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities In assessing
control, potential voting nghts that are currently exercisable are taken into account The financial results
of subsidiaries are included 1n the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences
unta! the date that control ceases
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BrightHouse Group Plc (formerly BrightHouse Group Limited

Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Accounting policies (continued)

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised income and expenses between (iroup companies are
eliminated 1n preparing the consolidated financial statements Unrealised losses are ehminated in the same
way as unreahsed gains, but only to the extent that there 1s no evidence of impairment

Foreign currencies

The Group financial statements are presented i pounds sterling and in round thousands, which 1s the
functional and presentation currency of all compames 1n the Group

Transactions 1n foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transaction Monetary assets and habilities denomunated 1n foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are
ranslated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date Foreign exchange differences ansing on
translation are recognised n the income statement Non-monetary assets and habilities that are measured
n terms of historical cost 1n a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
Cost includes expenditure that 1s directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset

Depreciation 18 charged to the income statement to write off the cost, less any residual value, of property,
plant and equipment to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
each part of an 1tem  Rental assets are depreciated at rates estimated to wnite off the cost to ml residual
value, by equal amounts, over their useful lives from the date of installation to the contract end date,
revised for returned goods subsequently sold

Estimated useful ives

Rental assets - equal to the total contract length which
may vary from asset to asset
Fixtures, equipment and vehicles — 3 to 7 years

Residual values and useful economic lives are reviewed annually Property, plant and equipment,
mncluding rental assets, are assessed for impairment annually or more often 1f events or changes 1n
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable Where an impairment review 1s
deemed necessary 1t 18 performed n accordance with the policies set out below

Depreciation s charged on all additions to or disposals of assets pro rated m the year of purchase or
disposal

Finance leases

Assets held under finance leases are capitalised at the mception of the lease, with a corresponding hability
being recognused for the lower of fair value of the leased asset and the mimimum lease payments Assets
held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the
lease term
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Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013

1. Accounting policies (continued)

Intang:ble assets

Intangible assets compnse software that 1s separable and not integral to hardware platforms Software is
stated at cost less accumulated amortisaton and impairment losses Externally acquired computer
software 1s capitalised and amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful economc life of 3 to 7 years
Costs relating to development of software for internal use are capitalised once the recogmtion cntena are
met When the software 15 available for its intended use, these costs are amortised over the estimated
useful Iife of the software

Other intemally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitahsed
and expenditure 1s reflected 1n the income statement in the year in which the expenditure 1s incurred

inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost 15 based on the first-in first-out
principle and includes expenditure incurred 1n acquinng the inventories and bringing them to their imtial
location and condition Net realisable value represents the esumated selling price less costs to be ncurred
m marketing, selling and distnbution

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carned 1n the balance sheet at cost Cash and cash equivalents compnise
cash m hand and deposits with an onginal matunty of three months or less Bank overdrafis that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents

A proportion of the cash and cash equivalents held by the Group’s insurance subsidianes 1s restricted due
to regulatory and solvency requirements The restricted cash also includes cash at bank held by the Group
on behalf of customers

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group's assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether there 15 any indication of impairment If any such indication
exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estunated An asset’s recoverable amount 1s the higher of an
asset’s or CGLs fair value less costs to sell and ats value in use and 1s determined for an individual asset
An 1mpairment loss 1s recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or 1its cash-generating umit
exceeds 1ts recoverable amount Impairment losses are recogmised in the income statement A cash
generating unit 1S the smallest 1dentifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
mndependent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets

Impairment losses recogmsed n respect of cash-generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of assets in the unit on a pro rata basis

For assets excluding goodwill, an impairment loss 1s reversed when there 1s an indication that the
impatrment loss may no longer exist and there has been a change 1n the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount An impairment loss 1s reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determuned, net of depreciation or
amortisation, 1f no impairment loss had been recognised

Trade receivables

Current trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their onginal invoiced value as
reduced by appropniate allowances for estimated recoverable amounts A provision for impairment of
trade receivables 1s established when there 1s objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the onginal term of the receivable Trade recervables older than 90 days are
fully provided for with no revenue being recognised on these non-performing agreements until customer
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Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013

1. Accounting policies (continued)

payments recommence Trade receivable balances between 7 and 90 days are partially provided for based
on the age of the debt between 20% and 99% The amount of the provision 1s the difference between the
carrying amousnt and the recoverable amount and this difference 1s recogmsed in the income statement

Trade receivables due after more than one year are discounted to reflect the time value of money

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nomnal value

Classification of financial instruments 1ssued by the Group

Financial instruments 1ssued by the Group are treated as equity (1 e forming part of shareholders’ funds)
only to the extent that they meet the following two conditions

(a) they include no contractual obligations upon the Group to deliver cash or other financial assets or 1o
exchange fnancial assets or financial habilities with another party under conditions that are
potentially unfavourable to the Group, and

(b) where the instrument will or may be settled 1n the Group’s own equity instruments, 1t 15 either a non-
derivative that includes no obhigation to deliver a vanable number of the Group’s own equity
mstruments or 15 a denvative that wall be settled by the Group exchanging a fixed amount of cash or
other financial assets for a fixed number of 1ts own equuty mstruments

To the extent that this defimition 1s not met, the proceeds of 1ssue are classified as a financial liability

Financial liabilities
1) Imitial recogrmtion and measurement

Financial habilities withun the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial habilities at fairr value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as denvatives designated as hedging instruments 1n an effective
hedge, as appropniate The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at iutial
recognition

All financial habilities are recogmsed itially at fair value less, in the case of loans and borrowings,
directly attributable transaction costs

The Company’s financial habilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings and denivative
financial instruments

i) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilites depends on theur classification as described below

in) Loans and borrowings
After imitial recogmition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method Gains and losses are recognised 1n the income
statement when the habilities are derecogrused as well as through the EIR amortisation process

Amortised costs 1s calculated by taking 1nto account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation 1s included in finance costs in the income
statement
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BnghtHouse Group Plc (formerly BrughtHouse Group lelted)

Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Accounting policies (continued)
Denvative financial instruments and hedge accounting

It 15 the Group’s policy to use denvative financial instrumentis where required to manage 1ts exposure to
foreign currency and interest rate nsk Further details of denvative financial mstruments are disclosed mn
note 20

The Group uses denivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts and interest rate
swaps to hedge 1ts foreign currency and interest rate nisks Such derivative financial instruments are
itially recogmsed at fair value on the date on which a denivative contract 15 entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value Derivatives are carned as financial assets when the fair value 1s
positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value 1s negative

Any gamns or losses ansmg from changes 1n their fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the income
statement, except for effective cash flow hedges, which hedge the exposure to vanability in cash flows
that 1s either attributable to a particular nisk associated with a recogrused asset or liability or a nghly
probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecogmsed firm commitment

At the inception of a cash flow hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the
hedge relatonship to which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the nsk management
objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge The documentation includes idennfication of the
hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the nisk being hedged and how the entity
will assess the effectiveness of changes 1n the hedging instrument’s fair value mn offsetting the exposure to
changes in the hedged 1tem’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged nsk Such hedges are
expected to be lighly effective m achieving offsetting changes 1n fair value or cash flows and are assessed
on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been hughlight effective throughout the financal
reporting pertods for which they were designated

For hedges that meet these strict critena the effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument
1s recognised directly in other comprehensive income n the cash flow hedge reserve, while any
ineffective portion 1s recognised immediately 1n the income statement 1n net finance costs

Amounts recogrised as other comprehensive income are transferred to the income statement when the
hedged wansaction affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense 13
recognised or when a forecast sale occurs When the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or
non-financial hability, the amounts recogmsed as other comprehensive mcome are transferred to the imual
carrying amount of the non-financial asset or hability

If the forecast transaction or firm commitment 15 no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised 1n equity 1s transferred to the income statement If the hedging instrument expires
or 18 sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover, or if its designation as a hedge 1s
revoked, any cumulative gain or loss previously recogmsed 1n other comprehensive income remains n
other comprehensive imcome until the forecast transaction or firmn commitment affects profit or loss
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Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Accounting policies (continued)
Defined contribution pension plans

Obligations for contmbutions to defined contnbution pension plans are recogmsed as an expense 1 the
mcome statement as incurred

Insurance claims

Contracts covering customers against break-down and damage are rencwed on a weekly basis A
provision under existing contracts 1s calculated based on claims received to date and, based on historical
experience, claims which the Group has yet been notified of but expects mn the near future Based on
historical expenence, management do not believe that a change n this estimate would have a matenal
impact on the Group’s financial mformation

Revenue recognition

Revenue principally comprises revenue from the provision of home electronic and domestic appliances,
household furmture and other related products to domestic customers through hire-purchase agreements

The Group also denves signsficant revenues from premiums related to the provision of insurance and
warranties against breakdown of televisions, domestic appliances, technology products and household
furniture rented under hire-purchase agreements

Goods are hired to customers pursuant to hire-purchase agreements, often 1n conyunction with service
insurance or warranty agreements, which provide for weekly and monthly terms with non-refundable
payments Under hire-purchase agreements, the customer has the right to acquire title through a purchase
option after payment of all required weekly and monthly payments The majonty of customers elect to
sign separate service agreements which amongst other benefits enable those customers to return hired
goods at any tume, without penalty

Transactions are classified as operating leases at the inception of the hire purchase agreement as the
majonty of the sk and rewards of the goods remain within the Group Rental mcome from operating
leases 1s recogmsed on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease Customer mcentives are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the average lease term

The Group accounts for 1ts revenue on an accruals basis for all domestic hire-purchase and service
insurance agreements taking credit for all weekly or monthly mnstalments that have fallen due, but not for
mstalments which will fall due in the future under contracts 1n existence at the balance sheet date No
revenue 15 recogmsed on non-performing agreements where payments are over 90 days overdue unul
payments recommence An appropriate provision 1s made against these unpaid accounts which have fallen
due where 1t 15 believed that they may not be receivable

Revenue excludes value added tax and insurance premium tax

Operating lease payments

Leases where the lessor retans a significant portion of risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases are recogmsed 1 the incoime statement on a straight-hne basis over the term
of the lease Lease tncentives received are recogmised in the income statement as an integral part of the
total lease expense and are spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Net financing costs

Net financing costs compnse nterest payable, interest receivable, the unwinding of discounts and fair
value movements that are recogmsed in the income statement Interest income and interest payable 1s
recognised 1n the income statement as 1t accrues, using the effecuve interest method
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Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013

1. Accounting policies (continued)
Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax Tax 1s recognised 1n the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly 1n other comprehensive income,
in whach case it 1s recogmised 1n other comprehensive income

Current tax 15 the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years

Deferred tax 1s provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes

The amount of deferred tax provided 1s based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of assets and lhiabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date

Deferred tax 15 measured at the tax rates that are expected 10 be apphed to the temporary differences when
they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date
Deferred tax assets and Liabilines are offset if there is a legally enforceable night to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authonty on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they ntend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or
their tax assets and liabilities wall be realised simultaneously

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it 1s no lenger probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered

Separately disclosable items

The Group has shown separately disclosable 1tems on the face of the Group income statement The Group
defines separately disclosable items as those matenal items, by virtue of their size or nature, which the
Group considers should be presented separately 1n order to aid comparability from period to period

Ordinary shares

Ordmary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attnbutable to the 1ssue of ordinary
shares are recognised as a deduction from equuty, net of any tax effects

New standards and interpretations not applied

The following standards and mterpretations that are relevant to the Group have not been apphed n the
consohdated financial information as, although 1n 1ssue at the date of preparation, were not effective for
the penods covered by these consolidated financial statements

International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS?) Effective date

« [FRS9 Financial Instruments Classification and measurement 1 January 2015
(not yet endorsed by EU)

e« JFRS13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013

o IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2013

e IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2013
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Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Accounting policies (continued)

Internat:onal Accounting Standards

« [AS19 Employee Benefits (Revised) 1 January 2013
o JAR27 Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2013
o JAS1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehenstve Income — 1 July 2012

Amendments to [AS 1

The directors do not antictpate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations wall have a
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements 1n the period of imitial application

Accounting estimates and judgements

Certain cnitical accounting judgements and estimates in applying the Group’s accounting policies are
described below

Finance and operating leases

Under hire-purchase agreements the customer has the nght to acquire title through a purchase option after
payment of all required weekly or monthly payments

Under hire-purchase agreements the customer also has the option, in conjunction with an optional
msurance agreement, to return goods, not make further payments and ncur no penalties On this basis
transactions are classified as operating leases at the inception of the hire purchase agreement as the
majonty of the risk and rewards of the goods remain within the Group

The sigmficant majonty of customers enter into this optional nsurance agreement and therefore
management consider 1t appropnate to treat all hire purchase transactions as operating in nature
Management monitor the percentage take-up of optional insurance cover on an ongoing basis to ensure
that the above judgement remains appropnate

Taxation and VAT

The calculation of the Group’s tax charge necessanly involves a degree of eshmation and judgement in
respect of certain items including transfer pricing and deductibility of interest and the resultant impact on
deferred taxes whose tax treatment cannot be finally determined until a resolution has been reached with
the relevant tax authority The final resolution may give nise to matenal income statement and or cash
flow variances

The Group’s trading activities are partially exempt from VAT The method and basis of calculation cannot
be finally determined until a resclution has been reached with HMRC for the respective peniod and may
result in adjustment

Intangible assets

Computer software 15 carried at cost less accumulated amortised and any impairment loss Externally
acquired computer software and software licenses are capitalised at the costs incurred to acquire and bring
mnto use the specific software Internally developed computer software programs are capitahised to the
extent that costs are separately identified and attmbuted to particular software programs, measured
rehably, and that the asset developed can be shown to generate future economic benefits The Group
estimates the amount which 1s appropnate to be capitalised based on timesheet records and payroll
information The Group makes a further judgement as to the successful outcome of the development
activity
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Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition and impairment of receivables

Contracted revenue 1s recogmsed on non-performung agreements where payments are up to 90 days
overdue Amounts greater than 90 days are fully provided Receivables aged up to 90 days overdue are
provided for depending on their age The Group estimates the provision based on their expected recovery
of overdue contracts and momnitors the estimate against actual recoveries

Determination of rental assets’ useful economic hves

Rental assets are depreciated to write down the cost of the assets over the term of the contracts as this 1s
the expected life of the contract at inception Contracts which are termuinated early, for whatever reason,
have the useful lives revised at the ime of termination  Accordingly the asset value 1s wnitten down at the
point of formal tenmination, and not before this event

Operating segments

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be 1dentified on the basis of intermal reports about component of
the Group that are regularly reviewed by the Board of Directors to zllocate resources to the segment and
to assess their performance

Based on the nisk and returns the directors consider the prnimary reporting format 1s by business segment
The directors consider that there 1s only one operating segment being the provision of goods and services
to third party consumers through rental and related service insurance agreements, based entrely n the
United Kingdom

Accordingly, segment profit or loss, segment assets and segment hiabilites have not been reported below
as this does not differ to that shown in the group income statement and group statement of financial
position

The Board of Directors assesses the performance of the business segment based on earmings before
interest, taxation, depreciation amortisation and exceptional items (EBITdA) The Board of Directors have
assessed the performance of the Group based on the following reconcihation between the performance
presented in the income statement and the management accounts

2013 2012

£000 £000
BrightHouse Group Limited reported operating profit 35,292 34,545
Depreciation of fixtures, equipment and vehicles and amortisation 13,155 10,979
Exceptional items,
Out of period indirect tax charges and provisions 234 (1,166)
Professional fees incurred during re-financing - 213
Exceptional EBT bonus award 715 -
BrightHouse Group Limited EBITdA before exceptional items 49,396 44,571
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Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Exceptional items
a) Recogmsed as part of operating profit

2013 2012
£000 £000
Out of peniod indirect tax charges and provisions 234 (1,166)
Professional fees incurred during re-financing — 213
Exceptional EBT bonus award 715 -
049 (953)

The exceptional items relate to the net settlement of outstanding indirect tax matters, costs mcurred during
the refinancing of the debt facihties in 2012 and an exceptional bonus award

b) Recogmsed within financial expenses

2013 2012
£000 £000
Ineffective cash flow hedge — transfer from equity 2,674 -
Acceleration of capitahised finance costs 3,682 -
6,356 -

The exceptional items relate to the fair value loss on the interest rate swap at March 2013 As a result of
the refinancing anticipated to be completed shortly afier the approval of the financial statements, the
hedged 1tems are no longer expected to occur As a result the hedged transaction 1s no longer constdered
highly probable and related amounts previously recogmnised 1n other comprehensive imncome have been
transferred to the income statement The acceleration of recogmution of the capitahised transaction costs
relate to the existing syndicate loan facihity which 1s expected to be repaid following the refinancing

Revenue

Revenue compnses revenue from the provision of home electromc and domestic apphances, household
furmuture and other related products to domestic customers through hire purchase agreements and related
service nsurance agreements When customers enter into rental agreements the majonty also enter mto
an additional optional nsurance arrangement, which entitles them to return assets with no further
payments falling due and with no penalties incurred On this basis the transactions are treated as bemng
operating lease in nature and the directors believe that at the inception of the lease there are no minimum
future lease payments as the goods can be returned at any time
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Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013

5. Operating profit
Thus 1s stated after charging

2013 2012

£000 £000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
— owned assets 8,007 6,619
— rental assets 97,490 85,881
Amortisation of intangible assets 5,148 4,360
Rental assets written off as obsolete or not recoverable from defaulting customers 17,687 15,704
Net book value of rental assets sold to customers 1,374 2,735
Occupancy costs 15,168 14,149
Operating lease rentals payable
— property 15,270 13,325
— vehicles 3,362 3,596
— equipment 432 451
Cost of inventories recogmised as an expense 967 916
Exchange differences 105 72

Operating expenses include auditors” remuneration for audit and non-audit services as follows

2013 2012

£000 £000
Fees payable to the company's auditor for the audit of the company's
group financial statements 5 5
The audit of the company's subsidianes pursuant to legislation 147 147
Taxation advisory services 196 172
Audut related assurance services 100 78
Taxation comphance services 33 -
Other services 22 -

6. Directors’ remuneration

2013 2012

£000 £000
Directors’ remuneration 2,051 1,415
Pens:on contributions 47 47

2,098 1,462

The aggregate of remuneration and amounts receivable under long-term 1ncentive schemes of the highest
paid director was £1,156,000 (2012 — £809,000), and in addition Company pension contnibutions of
£32.000 (2012 — £32,000) were made to a money purchase scheme on his behalf

Directers’ remuneration includes an exceptional bonus award of £526,000 (2012 ml)
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Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013

6. Directors’ remuneration (continued)

Retirement benefits are accruing to the following number of directors under

2013 2012

No No

Money purchase schemes 2 2
See note 23 for the remuneration of key management

7. Staff costs

2013 2012

£000 £000

Wages and salaries 59,465 52,359

Social security costs 5,305 4,858

Pension contributions 557 493

65,327 57,710

The average number of full-time equivalent persons employed by the group (including directors) during
the year, analysed by category, was as follows

2013 2012

No No
Customer sales and service 2,524 2,096
Admimstration 190 189
2,714 2,285

BrnightHouse Group Limited had no employees duning the year to 31 March 2013 (2012 — mil)

8. Finance income and expenses

Recogmsed mn income statement

2013 2012
£000 £000
Interest mcome 18 32
Unwinding of discount re trade receivables due after more than 1 year 14 221
Fair value gains on interest rate swaps - 479
Fair value gains on forward foreign exchange contracts 432
Finance income 464 732

27




L T 17 T e

Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Finance income and expenses (continued)

2013 2042
£000 £000
Interest expense 23,841 22,534
Fair value losses on wnterest rate swaps 2,674 199
Fair value losses on forward foreign exchange contracts - 55
Finance expenses 26,515 22,788

Interest expense includes £14,378,000 payable on loans provided from Haig Luxemburg HoldCo (2012 -

£14,677,000), the ultimate parent company which 1s consequently a related party (note 23)

income tax
(a)  Income tax on profit on ordinary activities

Recogmsed n the income statement

2013 2012
£000 £000
Current tax
Corporation tax charge overseas 666 425
Adjustments for prior years - 537
Total current in¢ome tax 666 962
Deferred tax
Deferred tax charge 1,947 1,784
Total deferred tax charge (note 12} 1,947 1,784
Total income taxation 12 1ncome statement 2,613 2,746
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Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013
9. Income tax (continued)
(b)  Reconcihiation of the total income tax charge
ETR 2013 ETR 2012
% £600 % £000
Accounting profit before tax 8,281 12,489
Accounting profit before tax by standard rate of
corporation tax n the UK of 24% (2012 — 26%) 24 0% 1,987 26 0% 3,247
Non-deductible expenses 19 0% 1,575 21 2% 2,645
Deferred tax rate change 5 5% 458 813% 1,040
Adjustment to tax charge 1n respect of previous years (2 1%) (176) 20% 244
Benefit from previously unrecogmsed deferred tax assets (2 4%) (202) (26 2%) (3,268)
Effect of tax rates 1n different junsdictions {17 5%} (1,448) (12 1%) (1,502)
Unrelieved tax losses 51% 419 2 7% 340 |
[ _— |
Total income taxation 1n mcome statement 31 6% 2,613 22 0% 2,746 !

(c)  Tax treatment of related party transactions

The UK corporation tax treatment of the Group's transactions with overseas related parties and the UK
corporation tax status of the Group's overseas subsidianes are currently subject to enquiry by the UK tax
authonties The expected habiliies have been recogmsed in the financial statements, but adjustments may
anse m future peniods upon agreement of the position with the UK tax authorities.

In addition see note 12 1n respect of the impact of changes in tax rate
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Notes to the group financial statements

at 31 March 2013

Property, plant and equipment

Cost

At1 Apnl 2011
Additions
Disposals

At 1 Apnl 2012
Additions
Dhisposals

At 31 March 2013

Depreciation

At1 Apnl 2011

Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals

Atl Apnl 2012
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 March 2013

Net book value
At 31 March 2013

At 1 Apnl 2012

At1 Apnl 2011

Fixtures,
equipment
Rental and
assets vehicles Total
£000 £000 £000
136,485 27,451 163,936
112,167 10,236 122,403
(89,799) - (39,799)
158,853 37,687 196,540
139.475 9,753 149228
(101,479) - (101,479
196,849 47,440 244,289
29,888 10,941 40,829
85,881 6,619 92,500
(71,360} - (71,360)
44 409 17,560 61,969
97.490 8,007 105,497
(82,418) - (82,418)
59,481 25,567 85,048
137,368 21,873 159,241
114,444 20,127 134,571
106,597 16,510 123,107
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Notes to the group financial statements

at 31 March 2013

Intangible assets

Cost
At1 Apnl 2011
Additions

At1 Apnil 2012
Add:tions

At 31 March 2013

Amortisation
At1 Apnl 2011
Amortisation charge for the year

At 1 Apnl 2012
Amortisation charge for the year

At 31 March 2013

Net book value
At 31 March 2013

At 1 Apnl 2012

At | Apnl 2011

Impairment testing

Software Goodwill Total
£000 £000 £000
30,073 74,978 105,051
3,080 - 3,080
33,153 74,978 108,131
3,284 - 3,284
36,437 74,978 111,415
18,881 ~ 18,881
4,360 - 4,360
23,241 - 23,241
5,148 - 5,148
28,389 - 28,389
8,048 74,978 83,026
9,912 74,978 84,890
11,192 74,978 86,170

Goodwill arose from the acquisiion of BrnghtHouse Limited and has been allocated to the Group’s one
cash generating umt (CGU) of retail sales, hire-purchase agreements and associated premwums for
mnsurance and warranty contracts The recoverable amount of the CGU 1s determined based on a value in
use calculation using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by the board covenng a 5
year period The pre-tax discount rate applied to these cashflows 1s 8 7% (2012 8 6%) Cashflows beyond
the five year period have been extrapolated at a 0% growth rate Given the level of prudence already
incorporated within the impairment review by using a 0% growth rate and the resulting headroom, the
calculation 1s most sensitive to a change 1n discount rate An mncrease in discount rate by 2% would result

H1 o umpairment
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Notes to the group financial statements

at 31 March 2013

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Assets

Tax losses recognised

Interest rate swap

Foretgn forward exchange contracts
Unrealised profit on intercompany trading
Other property, plant and equipment
Capital contributions on lease incentives

Total tax assets

Tax losses recogrused

Interest raie swap

Foreign forward exchange contracts
Dufference between book value and tax base
of property, plant and equipment

Unrealised profit on intercompany trading
Capital contributions on lease incentives

Net asset

Discounted trade receivables

Rent free lease incentives

Interest rate swap

Foreign forward exchange contracts
Difference between book value and tax base
of property, plant and equipment

Unrealised profit on intercompany trading
Caprtal contnibutions on lease incentives

Net asset

2013 2012
£000 £000
3,082 -
615 428
(41) 61
3,094 9,930
3,340 2,192
447 302
10,537 12,913
Recogmsed
tn other
I April  Recogmised comprehensive 31 March
20i2  nincome tncome 2013
£000 £000 £000 £000
- (3,082) - (3,082)
(428) (615) 428 (615)
(61) 102 - 41
(2,192) (1,148) - (3,340)
(9,930 6,836 - {3,094)
(302) (145) - (447)
(12,913) 1,948 428 (10,537}
Recogmised
n other
I April  Recogmised comprehensive 31 March
2011 in income income 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000
(88) 88 - -
(346) 346 - -
(125) 125 (428) (428)
(51) (10) - (61)
(2,225) 33 - (2,192)
(11,433) 1,503 - (9,930)
- (302) - (302)
(14,268) 1,783 (428) (12,913)

32




12.

13.

14.

BnghtHouse Group Plc (formeriy BnghtHouse Group lelted)

Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Deferred tax assets and liabilities (continued)
There are unrecogmsed deferred tax assets of £2,397,000 (2012 - £2,309,000)

In the March 2013 Budget the Chancellor announced that the main rate of UK corporation tax wilt fall to
20% from | April 2015 Thus follows the announcement wn the Autumn Statement that the main rate wall
fall 1o 21% wath effect from 1 April 2014 Both rates are expected to be included wathin Finance Ball 2013
which will be substantively enacted and subsequently enacted during the course of 2013 and are therefore
not reflected 1n the financial statements In 2013, the rate wall fall to 23%, from 24% with effect from 1
Apnil 2013 Thus rate reduction to 23% was included 1n Finance Act 2012, enacted 1n July 2012

The effect of the subsequent reduction to 20% 1f enacted will be 1o reduce the deferred tax asset by a
further £892,000

Inventories
2013 2012
£000 £000
Goods held for resale at cost 8,865 11,639

During the year assets acquired for resale amounting to £139,475,000 (2012 — £112,167,000) were
capitalised within property, plant and equipment as rental assets when 1ssued to stores 1n advance of being
hired to customers pursuant to hire and hire-purchase agreements

Trade and other receivables

2013 2012
£000 £000
Current
Trade receivables 1,421 1,675
Other trade receivables and prepayments 9,491 7,453
Other non-trade receivables 657 517
VAT incurred m advance of recovery from customers 23,565 19,566
Prepaid refinancing professional fees 8,274 -
43,408 29211
2013 2012
£000 £000
Non current
VAT wcurred m advance of recovery from customers 15,745 14,089

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recetvables approximates to their fair
value Trade receivables pnmanly comprise VAT recoverable which 1s paid on the full value of assets
acquired by customers under hire and hire-purchase agreements when the contracts commence and are
recovered from customers over the full length of these agreements or from HMRC on customer default
Within trade receivables £15,745,000 (2012 — £14,089,000) are receivable afier more than one year and
have been discounted to determine their fair value (note 20)

All trade and other receivables have been reviewed for indicators of impaurment Certain trade receivables
were found to be impaired and a bad debt provision of £856,000 (2012 — £823,000) has been recorded
accordingly
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Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Trade and other receivables (conunued)
In addition, some of the unprovided trade receivables are past due as at the reporting date The age of
financal assets past due but not provided for 1s as follows

2013 2012

£000 £000
1-7 days 93 76
8-14 days 46 49
15-45 days 82 91
45-90 days 5 5

226 221

Movements 1n bad debt provision

2013 2012

£000 £000
At beginning of year 823 730
Amounts wnitten off as uncollectable (7,902) (8,622)
Increase n bad debt provision 7,935 8,715
At end of year 856 823

The movement i the bad debt provision consists of individually 1nsignificant balances The Group’s
exposure to credit nsk related to trade and other receivables 1s disclosed 1n note 20

Cash and cash equivalents
2013 2012
£000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents per balance sheet and cash flow statement 10,873 8,579

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash at bank and 1n hand Included withun cash and cash equivalents
15 restrnicted cash of £1,716,000 (2012 — £1,636,000} This includes restricted cash of £666,000 which
represents cash at bank held by entities who supply insurance related services within the Group which 1s
restricted due to regulatory and solvency requirements This also includes restricted cash of £1,050,000
{2012 — £970,000) which represents cash held by the Group on behalf of customers

The directors consider that the carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates to their fair
value
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Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Financial assets and liabilities

20i3 2012
£000 £000
Current assets
Foreign currency forward contracts 180 -
180 -
Current habilities
Interest rate swaps 2,674 1,786
Foreign currency forward contracts 252
Revolving credit facility semor loan 300 -
2,974 2,038
Non-current habihities
Revolving credit facihity senuor loan 74,346 75,619
Unsecured 10% loan stock 1ssued to related parties (see note 23) 153,906 146,320
228,252 221,939

Terms and debt repayment schedule

The unsecured 10% loan stock 1s redeemable on 18 July 2036 and forms part of the investment made 1n
the Group by funds advised by Vision Capital LLP (see note 23 Related Parties) The unsecured loan
stock can be redeemed at an earher date by either party, at which time the stock and any accrued and
unpaid interest will become payable The amount above includes £10,346,000 (2012 £10,050,000) of

accrued interest The Group repaid £6,792,000 unsecured 10% loan stock during the year

The terms of the unsecured loan stock are such that the lender must give not less 12 months notice of

proposed early redemption unless the following conditions apply

*  1fthe ownership of the Group has changed, or

¢+ 1f the Group fails to pay amounts due under the sentor or mezzanine loan facility agreements of

BnghtHouse Limited and Caversham Finance Limited, or

e 1f more than 6 months have passed since the Group has fully settled the senior loan of Caversham
Finance Limited This condition 1s not applied 1f the settlement 1s activated through refinancing
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BnghtHouse Group Plc (formerly BnghtHouse Group L|m|ted)

Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Financial liabilities (continued)

On 10 November 2011 the Company entered mnto a syndicate loan facility with Lloyds TSB Bank Plc, GE
Corporate Finance Bank SAS and Ares Capital Europe Limited This currently amounts to a total facility
of £101 7m In the year, £0 3m was repaid All facihties are secured agamnst the assets of the Group and
are repayable in two stages The Lloyds TSB Bank Plc and GE Corporate Finance Bank SAS elemenis
amount to £59 7m £0 3m 15 repayable on § November 2013 and £59 4m 1s repayable on § November
2014 The Ares Capital Europe Limited facility amounts to £40m and 1s repayable on 8 November 2016

As at 31 March 2013 the Group had undrawn commutied facilities available to 1t of £25 6m (2012 —
£19 6m) 1n respect of which all conditions precedent had been met and all covenants complied with

There 15 a first pnonty fixed secunity and floating charge over the assets of the Group 1n favour of Lloyds
TSB Bank Plc, acting as security agent

Trade and other payables

2013 2012

£000 £000

Trade payables 17,930 10,927
Other taxes and social security 6,085 4,632
Other non-trade payables 711 450
Accrued expenses 24,622 20,657
Accrued refinancing professional fees 8,274 -
57,622 36,666

Trade and other payables prnincipally compnise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing
costs The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to thewr
fair value

Professional fees to be incurred on new debt facilities have been recognised as a £8 3m other receivable
and a £8 3m other payable These fees are expected to be amortised over the term of the new facility
Should this new facility not materialise, the Group will incur costs of £1 Tm

Employee benefits

Pension schemes

Defined contribution

In 2013 total contributions in respect of defined contnbution schemes were £557,000 (2012 — £493.000)
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BrrghtHouse Group Plc (formerly BnghtHouse Group lelted)

Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Capital and reserves

2013 2012
Allotted, called up and fully pard No £000 Neo £000
A Ordinary shares of £0 001 each - - 5,790,720 5
Ordinary shares of £0 01 each - - 215,465 2
B Ordinary shares of £0 01 each - - 299,066 3
C Ordinary shares of £0 01 each - - 190,907 2
D Ordinary shares of £0 01 each - - 79,921 1
E Ordinary shares of £0 01 each - — 79,921 1
A Ordinary shares of £0 001 each 4,350,000 4 - -
Ordinary shares of £0 001 each 117,500 - - -
B Ordmary shares of £0 01 each 200,000 2 - -
C Ordinary shares of £0 01 each 100,000 1 - -
D Ordinary shares of £0 01 each 62,500 1 - -
E Ordinary shares of £0 01 each 62.500 1 - -
F Ordimnary shares of £500 each 1 1 - -
G Ordinary shares of £0 001 each 107,499 - - -
A Preferred shares of £0 0000001 each 6,725,639 - - -
B Preferred shares of £0 0000001 each 86,583,475 - - -
Deferred shares of £0 0000001 each 4.743,992,053 - - -

On 22 November 2012 new Articles of Association were adopted by the Company which resulted in the
sub-division and re-designation of the existing share capital into new classes of both Ordinary and
Preferred Shares as set out below

Details of the share classes held at 31 March 2013 after the reorganisation on 22 November 2012 are as
follows -

*A Ordinary Shares’ are controlled by VCP VI B (see note 23 Related parties) ‘B Ordinary Shares’, "C
Ordmmary Shares’, ‘D Ordinary Shares”, E Ordinary Shares’, *F Ordinary Shares’, "G Ordinary Shares’
and ‘Ordinary Shares’ are controlled by management (*Management Shares’) ‘A Preferred Shares’ are
controlied by VCP VI B, 'B Preferred Shares’ are controlled by VCP VI B and management and
‘Deferred Shares’ are controlled by the Employee Benefit Trust Dividends are distnbuted first to A
Preferred Shares until the maximum hurdle rate, described i the Articles of Association, has been met

Remarming dividend amounts are then distributed to B Preferred Shares until the maximum hurdle rate has
been met Deferred Shares receive no dividend distibution All other classes of share are treated equally
for any remaimng distnbution For voting, each class of share holds n aggregate, the % of votes as
follows A Ordmnary 75%, B Ordmnary 5%, C Ordinary 5%, D Ordinary 5%, E Ordinary 5% and F
Ordinary 5% All other classes of share hold no voting nghts In the event of a sale of the business,
realisation proceeds are allocated i the following order To the extent that the hurdle rate exceeds any
previous return of capital A Preferred Shares receive proceeds first Next to the extent that the hurdle rate
exceeds any previous return of capital B Preferred Shares receive proceeds Deferved Shares receive a
max:mum of 1p on a sale of the business Finally any remaining proceeds are distnbuted equally between
the remawning share classes However, 1n certain circumstances described in the Articles, participation of
Management Shares 1n the proceeds may wuicrease
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Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Capital and reserves (continued)
Details of the share classes held at 31 March 2012 were as follows

*A Ordinary Shares’ were controlled by VCP VI B (see note 23 Related parties) ‘B Ordinary Shares’, ‘C
Ordinary Shares’, ‘D Ordinary Shares’, ‘E Ordinary Shares’ and ‘Ordinary Shares’ were controlled by
management The classes of shares were treated equally for dividends For voting, each class of share held
in aggregate, the % of votes as follows A Ordwmary 77 13%, B Ordmary 5%, C Ordwary 5%, D
Ordinary 5%, E Ordinary 5% and Ordinary 2 87% Under certain circumstances described in the Articles
of Association, B Ordnary, C Ordinary, D Ordinary and E Ordinary shares could be converted into
Ordinary Shares, and the voting nghts of A Ordinary and Ordinary shares adjusted accordingly In the
event of sale of the business (subject to certain rules descibed 1n the Articles of Association) the
participaiton of the management 1n the proceeds could be increased by converting a number of A Ordinary
shares into ‘Deferred shares’ ‘Deferred shares’ would receive a normnal amount of £001 for all
‘Deferred shares’

Financial instruments
Capital management

The Group manages 1ts capital to ensure that entities 1n the Group will be able to continue as a going
concemn while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimusation of debt and equity The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from 2012 The captal structure of the Group consists of
debt, which includes borrowings disclosed 1n note 16, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
equity holders of the parent, comprsing 1ssued capital, reserves and retained earmings The capial
structure of the Group at the year end was as follows

2013 2012

£000 £000
Debt (1) {231,226) (223,977
Cash and cash equivalents 10,873 8,579
Net debt (220,353) (215,398)
Equity (11} 41,874 34,264
Net debt to equity ratio 526% 629%

(1) Debt 1s defined as long-and shori-term borrowings including dernvative financial instruments, as
detailed n notes 16

(1) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group
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Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Financial instruments (continued)
Categories of financial instruments

2013 2012
£000 £000
Financial assets
Cammed at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 10,873 8,579
Trade and other receivables 59,153 43,300
Foreign currency forward contracts 180 -
70,206 51,879
Financial habihities
Carried at amortised cost
Borrowings 228,552 221,939
Trade payables 17,930 10,927
Carried at fair value through other comprehensive income
Interest rate swaps - 1,786
Carned at fair value through profit or loss
Trade recervables — foreign currency forward contracts - 252
Interest rate swaps 2,674 -

249,156 234,904

Financial nsk management objectives

The risks facing the Group comprise market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquadity nsk The Group's approach to these nsks 1s noted below

Credit nsk

The primary credit nsk of the Group anses from the significant cash investment mn all new agreements
which are at nisk of payment default or theft of the product made available to the customer before the full
term of the agreement 15 reached The Group manages these nisks by developing close relationships with
1ts customers These relationships are managed by requinng customers to pay amounts due weekly m-
store and 1n the event of a payment default, through the application of proven posiive collection
processes

The amounts presented mn the balance sheet are net of allowances for impairment calculated by the
Group’s management based on prior expenence and their assessment of the current economic
environment The Group has no signuficant concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers

The directors consider that the carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair
value The maximum exposure to credit nisk 1s represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset
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Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Financial instruments (continued)
Liquidity risk

The objective of the Group's hquidity sk management 15 to ensure sufficient cash resources and the
availability of funding as required by maintaimng a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through cash peoling and shareholder funding The Group holds financial assets either for which there 1s a
liquid market or which are expected to generate cash inflows that are available to meet lhiquidity needs In
addition, as at 31 March 2013, the Group has committed undrawn bank facilities of £25 6m (2012 -
£19 6m) These facilities exptre in November 2014 and November 2016 The undrawn facility element all
expires in November 2014 Both facilities are subject to financial covenants

The Group monitors 1ts hquidity risk on an ongowng basis by undertaking rigorous cash flow forecasting
procedures This monitoning includes financial ratios to assess headroom under financial covenants on
bank facilities and takes into account the accessibility of cash and cash equivalents In order to ensure
contmuty of funding, the Group secks to arrange funding ahead of business requirements and maintain
sufficient un-drawn commutted borrowing facilities

The unsecured loan stock, which has a matunty date of 17 July 2036, detailed in the table below was
purchased by Vision Capital at the time of its acquisition of BnghtHouse 11 2007 All interest 1s rolled up
into the principal on an annual basis and 1s designed to be payable upon the sale of the business See note
16 for details relaung to the circumstances in winch the loan stock can be redeemed at erther the option of
the Company or loan note holder

The Group are at an advanced stage to replace the existing debt facilities Accordingly, the Group have
incurred exceptional finance costs of £6 4m relating to the acceleration of the amortisation of existing loan
transaction costs and the recycling of losses from equity relating to interest rate swaps which are no longer
constdered effective Professional fees to be incurred on new debt facilities have been recogmised as a
£8 3m other receivable and a £8 3m other payable These fees are expected 10 be amortised over the term
of the new facility Should this new facility not matertal:se, the Group will incur costs of £1 7m

The following table details the remaming contractual maturnity for the Group's non-dertvative interest
bearing undiscounted financial liabilities
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Financial instruments (continued)

At 31 March 2013

Sentor credit facility
Unsecured loan stock
Trade payables

At 31 March 2012

Senior credit facility
Unsecured loan stock
Trade pavables

6 months 6-12 1-2 Over 2
or less months years years Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
2,267 2,723 37,603 48,223 90,816
- - 169,161 - 169,161
17,930 - - - 17,930
20,197 2,723 206,764 48,223 277,907

6 months 6-12 i1-2 Over 2
or less months years years Total
£000 £000 £060 £000 £000
2,351 2,160 5,058 92,6876 102,245
- - 160,828 - 160,828
10,927 - - - 10,927
13,278 2,160 165,886 92,676 274,000

The following table details the Group's liquudity analysis for its derivative financial instruments as at the

year end

At 31 March 2013

Net settled interest rate swaps
Gross settled foreign currency
- forward contracts outflow

- forward contracts inflow

At 31 March 2012

Net seftled interest rate swaps
Gross settled foreign currency
- forward contracts outflow

- forward contracts inflow

6 months 6-12 i-2 Over 2
or less months years years Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
{396) (602) (834) {771 {2,603)
(5,030) (621) - - (5,651
5,172 658 - - 5,830
(254) (565) (834) (771) (2,424)
6 months 6-12 1-2 Cver 2
or less months years years Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
2) (238) {653) (1,493) (2,406)
(4,466) {4,839 (2,580) - (11,885)
4,443 4,724 2,466 - 11,633
(25) (373) (767) (1,493) (2,658)
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Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Financial instruments (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group manages 1ts interest rate risk through a combination of cash pooling, shareholder funding and
borrowing at a mux of both fixed and vanable rates Management regularly monitors movements 1n
interest rates to determine the most advantageous debt profile for the Group Whilst the fixed rate interest
bearing debt 15 not exposed to cash flow interest rate risk, the fioating rate borrowings expose the group to
cash flow nsk as costs increase if market rates rise To manage this rnisk the Group enters into interest rate
swaps agreed with counter parties to generate the deswred interest profile At the year end 100% of the
Group’s borrowings (2072 94%) were at fixed rates after taking into account interest rate swap hedges

The Group has access to financing facilities, the total unused amount of which 1s £25 6m at the balance
sheet date The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the net result for the year and equity to a
reasonably possible change 1n interest rates of +/-1%, with effect from the beginming of the year This
analysts assumes that all other vanables remain constant These changes are considered to be reasonably
possible based an observation of current market conditions The calculations are based on BrightHouse
Group Limted s financial struments held at each balance sheet date All other vanables are held
constant

2013 2012
‘ £000 £000
+1% -1% +1% -1%
Net result for the year 1,808 (844) 2,509 (1,690)

Cash flow hedges - Interest rate risk

At 31 March 2013, the Group held interest rate swap contracts for a norinal value of £75m (2012 £75m),
designated as a hedge of the cash flow interest rate risk of the £74 Om (2072 £80 Om) drawn down from
the syndicate lean facility 1n the year At March 2013 the hedges were not expected to be highly effective
m the following year and related amounts previously recogmsed in other comprehensive income have
been transferred to the income statement

In the prior year hedge accounting was applied 1n relation to these interest rate swaps The terms of the
interest rate swap agreement have been negotiated to match the terms of the hedged item — the syndicate
loan facility

The cash flow hedges of the expected interest charges on the facility between November 2012 to
November 2016 were assessed to be hughly effective and at 31 March 2012, a net unreahsed loss of £1 4m
with a related deferred tax credit of £0 3m, was included in other comprehensive income 1n respect of
these hedging contracts

The nterest rate swaps are on the balance sheet as a fair value hability of £2 7m (2012 £1 8m)

Currency nisk

The Group 1s exposed to fluctuations in the US dollar, ansing from the import of goods from overseas
supphers, which impacts operating activities Management aim to limut this market nsk with selected
denvative financial instruments being used for this purpose The group hedges these cash flow exposures
by acquuring forward currency contracts The exposure may be covered for a peniod up to 2 years
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Financial instruments (continued)

Based on the Group’s dollar denomunated financial instruments at the end of the year, the impact of a
reasonably possible change mn the US dollar rates of +5%, sterling weakening against the dollar, would
have resulted in an increase 1n profit of £0 3m (2012 — £0 6m) A -5% change 1n the rate, would have
resulted 10 a £0 3m decrease m profit (2012 — £0 6m) Thus analysis assumes that all other vanables
remain constant These changes are considered to be reasonably possible based on observation of current
market conditions All other vanables are held constant These derivatives are used to hedge planned
transactions but are not accounted for using hedge accounting

Fair value

Denivative financial instruments

The fair value of interest rate swaps and foreign currency forward contracts 1s calculated as the present
value of future cash flows where the discount factors are denved from the forward curve

Trade receivables

Trade receivables due after more than one year have been discounted to determine the present value of the
future cash flows using a discount rate of 0 5% (2012 0 7%) based on the government bond yield curve

Fair value compared to carrying value

Carrying amount Fair value
2013 2012 2013 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 160,873 8,579 10,873 8,579
Trade and other recervables 59,153 43,300 59,153 43,300
Foreign currency forward contracts 180 - 180 -
Financial liabilities
Amorused cost
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Floating rate borrowings 74,646 75,619 74,646 75,619
Fixed rate borrowings 153,906 146,230 142,506 135,398
Trade and other payables 17,930 10,927 17,930 10,927
Farr value through profit and loss
Foreign currency forward contracts - 252 - 252
Interest rate swaps 2,674 - 2,674 -
Derwvatives used for hedging
Interest rate swaps - 1,786 - 1,786

IFRS 7 fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determuming and disclosing the fair value of financial
mnstruments by valuahon techmque -

Level 1 quoted prices mn active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 other techmques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value
are observable, either directly or indirectly, and

Level 3 techmques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded farr value that are not
based on observable market data
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Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Financial instruments (continued)

As at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 respectively the group held the following financial mstruments
measured at fairr value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
£000 £000 £000
Far value through the income statement
Foreign currency forward contracts - 180 -
Denvatives used for hedging
Interest rate swaps - (2,674) -
Level | Level 2 Level 3
£000 £000 £000
Feur value through the income statement
Foreign currency forward contracts - (252) -
Derwatives used for hedging
Interest rate swaps - (1,786) -
Other financial commitments
The Group as a lessee
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows
2013 2012
Land and Land and
buldings Other buildings Other
£000 £000 £000 £000
Operating leases which expire
Less than one year 15,715 3,018 14,659 2,664
Between two and five years 52,074 4,191 49,136 4,371
More than five years 29,628 - 30,520 -
97,417 7,209 94,315 7,035

The Group leases a number of retail faciliies under operating leases Land and buildings have been
considered separately for lease classification 1n accordance with IAS17 “leases™ and based on the nature
and terms of the respective agreements the directors beheve they are operating in nature

Duning the year £19,064,000 was recognised as an expense 1a the income staiement 1n respect of operating
leases (2012 — £17,372,000)

The Group as a lessor

When customers enter into rental agreements the majority also enter into an addittonal optional insurance
arrangement which entitles them to return assets with no further payments falling due and with no
penalties incurred On this basis the transactions are treated as being operating lease 1n nature and the
directors believe that at the inception of the lease there are no mumimum future lease payments as the
goods can be returned at any time
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Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Capital commitments

There were no capital commitments at the end of the financial year and consequently no provision has
been made (2012 — £ml)

Related party transactions
Identity of related parties

Vision Capual Partners VI B LP (VCP VI B), a Scottish Limited Partnershup acting through Haig
Luxembourg Holdco Sar] (Haig Luxembourg HoldCo), a company incorporated in Luxembourg, are
related parties by virtue of the fact that since 18 July 2007 they controlled the majonty of the share capital
of BrghtHouse Group Limited, the'largest group of which the company 1s a member and for which
accounts are drawn up The directors therefore consider VCP VI B and Haig Luxembourg HoldCo Sar |
to be related parties Vision Capital LLP 1s also considered a related party by virtue of the fact that it 1s the
mnvestment adviser to the general partner of VCP VI B

Duning the year the group had transactions with the following companies, which are deemed to be related
parties on the basis that they were owned by VCP VI B Duning this penod, group companies entered into
the following transactuions with related parties

2013
Amounts
owed to
Interest related
accrued parties
£000 £000
Haig Luxemburg Holdco 10,346 153,906
2012
Amounts
owed to
Interest related
accrued parties
£000 £000
Haig Luxemburg Holdco

10,050 146,320

Other related party transactions

Transactions between BrightHouse Limited and uts subsidianes, which are related parties, have been
elimunated on consolidation and are not disclosed mn this note

Durmg the year the loan given m the prior year to D A Poole, a director of a subsidiary, namely,
Caversham Finance Lirmied was repaid This loan amounted to £45,000 and was made to cover the costs
of shares purchased in BrightHouse Group Limited

In November 2012, Haig Luxembourg HoldCo, the ultimate parent company, purchased from the
Employee Benefit Trust 707,947 A Preferred Shares
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BrightHouse Group Plc (formerly BnghtHouse Group lelted)

Notes to the group financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Related party transactions (continued)

Remuneration of key management
The compensation of key management personnel (including the directors) 1s as follows

2013 2012
£060 £000
Key management emoluments 3,569 2,425
Company contnbutions to money purchase pension plans 68 65
3,637 2,490

Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

Haig Luxembourg HoldCo 15 the ultumate parent company of BrightHouse Group Lamuted The Group
financial statements of this group are available to the public and may be obtained from the registered
office

The ultimate controlling party 1s Vision Capital Partners VI B LP (VCP VI B), a Scotush Limited
Partnership

Post balance sheet events

As a pre-requisite of the proposed refinancing anticipated to be completed following the approval of the
financial statements 1t was necessary that the Company re-registered as a public limited company (*PLC’)
At 31 March 2013 the Company had wmsufficient share capital and distnibutable reserves to re-register as a
PLC Thus following the balance sheet date a share reorganisation exercise was implemented which 1s
detailed below

The Company reduced 1ts share premum account (by a reduction of share capital supported by a solvency
statement) by £6m This action resulted in positive net distributable reserves as required for PLC
conversion

A number of share transactions were also implemented 1in order to imcrease the share capital of the
Company to at least £50,000

1) A new class of non-voting share of the Company with a nominal value of £1 (*C Preferred
Shares’) was created

1} 5 members of Semor Management subscnibed for I C Preferred share cach and Haig
Luxembourg Holdco S a r | ( Haig’) subscribed for 15 C Preferred Shares at market value

111) The Company carmied out a bonus 1ssue to the holders of the C Preferred Shares whereby

2,024 C Preferred Shares were 1ssued for each C Preferred Share held

1v) The E Ordinary shares of £0 01 each were transferred to the Employee Benefit Trust These
shares lost their 5% voting nights

v} A new class of share with 5% voting rights was created with a nominal value of £500 (‘H
shares’) One H share was subscribed for at market value

On 22 Apnl 2013 BnghtHouse Group Limited was re-registered as BrnghtHouse Group Plc
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Company Statement of financial position

at 31 March 2013

Notes
Non current assets
Investments 27
Current assets
Trade and other recervables 28
Total assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 29
Total habilities
Net assets
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Share capital 30

Share premium

Capital redemption reserve
Owm shares reserve
Retained earmings

Total equity

The notes on pages 49 10 55 are an integral part of the financial statements

2013 2012
£000 £000
6,645 6,645
6,645 6,645
8,274 ~
8,274 -
14,919 6,645
9,759 886
9,759 886
9,759 886
5,160 5,759
9 13
6,592 6,437
57 52
(286) -
(1,212) (743)
5,160 5,759

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 22 Apnl 2013 and were signed on

1ts behalf by
G M O David
Director
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Company statement of changes in equity
at 31 March 2013

Capital
Share Share Own Retmined  redemption Total
capital premium  shares earmngs reserve equity
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Atl Apnl 2011 65 6,592 - (510) - 6,147
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - (233) - (233)
Sale of own shares - (155) - - - (1535)
Cancelled shares (52) - - - 52 —
Atl Apnril 2012 13 6,437 - (743) 32 5,759
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - (1,184) - (1,184)
Issue / purchase of shares 1 155 (286} - - {130)
Sale of treasury shares - - - 715 - 715
Cancelled shares (5) - - - 5 -
At 31 March 2013 9 6,592 (286) (1,212) 57 5,160
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26.

Notes to the company financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Accounting policies
General information

BrightHouse Group Limited 1s a himited company {“company”) incorporated in the United Kingdom
under the Companies Act 2006 (registration number 6250176) The Company 1s domuciled 1n the United
Kangdom and 1ts registered address 15 5 Hercules Way, Leavesden, Watford, WD235 7GS

Authorisation of financial statements and statement of compliance with IFRS.

The financial statements of BrightHouse Group Limited for the year ended 31 March 2013 were
authonsed for 1ssue on 22 April 2013 by the board of directors and the balance sheet signed on the board’s
behalf by Giles David The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Commuttee (“IFRIC”) mterpretatons as endorsed by the European Union, and these parts of the
Companies Act 2006 applicable to Companies reporting under IFRS

Basts of preparation

The financial statements of BnghtHouse Group Limited (“the Company™) are approved by the directors
and prepared m accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted for use 1n the
European Union (“EU”) (*Adopted IFRSs™) The financial statements are presented 1n Sterling and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£°000) except where otherwise indicated

A summary of the Company's accounting polictes are set out below

Exemptions

The directors have taken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Compames Act
2006 and have not presented a profit and loss account for the Company alone The Compary made a loss
of £1,184,000 in the year (2012 — loss of £233,000) The Company held no cash at the start of, end of or
duning the year and thus a statement of cash flows has not been prepared

Investments
The investment 1n the subsidiary undertaking 1s stated at cost, less any amounts wnitten off

Impairment

The carrying amount of the Company's assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there 15 any mdrcation of impairment If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
15 estimated An asset s recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset s or cost generating unit’s fair value
less costs to sell and 1ts value in use and is deterrined for an individual asset An mmpatrment loss 15
recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or 1ts cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount Impairment losses are recognised 1n the income statement A cash generating umt 1s the smallest
wdentifiable group of assets that generates cash mflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets

Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating umits are allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of assets in the umt on a pro rata basis

For assets excluding goodwall, an impairment loss 1s reversed when there 15 an indication that the
impairment loss may no longer exist and there has been a change in the estimates used to determne the
recoverable amount
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Notes to the company financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Accounting policies (continued)

An impairment loss 1s reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, 1f no impairment
loss had been recogmsed

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax Tax 1s recogmised 1n the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recogmised directly in equity, in which case 1t 15
recognised 1n equuty

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable 1n respect of previous
years

Deferred tax 1s provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habilittes for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes

The amount of deferred tax provided s based on the expected manner of reahsation or settlement of the
carrymg amount of assets and lhabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date

Deferred tax 1s measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when
they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date
Deferred tax assets and habilites are offset if there 15 a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
habihities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax habilittes and assets on a net basis or
their tax assets and habilities will be realised simultaneously

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 15 reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that 1t 18 no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits wtll be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered

Classification of financial instruments issued by the Company

Financial instruments 1ssued by the Company are treated as equity (1e formung part of shareholders’
funds) only to the extent that they meet the following two conditions

(a) they include no contractual obligations upon the Company to deliver cash or other financial
assets or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another party under conditions
that are potentially unfavourable to the Company, and

(b) where the mstrument will or may be settled in the Company’s own equity instruments, 1t is either
a non-denvative that includes no obligation to deliver a vanable number of the Company’s own
equity mstruments or is a denvative that will be settled by the Company exchanging a fixed
amount of cash or other financial assets for a fixed number of its own equity mnstruments

To the extent that this defimtion 1s not met, the proceeds of 1ssue are classified as a financial liability

Financal liabilities
)] Initial recognition and measurement

Financial habilities within the scope of LAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as denvatives designated as hedging instruments 1n an effective
hedge, as appropnate The Company determines the classification of its financial habilities at initial
recogmtion

All financial habilities are recognised imtially at fair value plus, in the case of loans and borrowings,
directly attnbutable transaction costs
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Notes to the company financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Accounting policies (continued)
The Company’s financial habilities include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings

1) Subsequent measurement
‘The measurement of financial habilities depends on their classification as described below

in) Loans and borrowings

After imtal recogmtion, interest bearing foans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method Gains and losses are recogmsed 1n the income
statement when the liabilities are derecogmised as well as through the EIR amortisation process

Amortised costs 1s calculated by taking 1nto account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation 1s included in finance costs in the income
statement

New standards and interpretations not applied

The following standards and interpretations that are relevant to the Company have not been apphed 1n the
financial information as, although in 1ssue at the date of preparation, were not effective for the pertods
covered by these financial statements

International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS’) Effectuve date

e [IFRS9 Fiancial Instruments Classification and measurement 1 January 2015
(not yet endorsed by EU)

* [FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013

e ([FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2013

« [FRS12 Disclosure of Interests i Other Entities i Janunary 2013

International Accounting Standards

= [AS19 Employee Benefits (Revised) 1 January 2013

s [AS27 Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2013

s JAS1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income — 1 July 2012

Amendments to IAS 1

The directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations will have a
material impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements 1n the perniod of imtial application

Investments
2013 2012
£000 £000
Cost and net book value
At 1 Apnl 2011, 1 Apnl 2012 and 31 March 2013 6,645 6,645

In Apni 2007, BnghtHouse Liited acquired all of the shares of Caversham Finance Limited 1n a share-
for-share exchange The cost of acquinng Caversham Finance Limited has been recorded at book value

The Company has taken advantage of section 162 of the Compames Act 2006 1n prepanng 1ts financial
statements
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at 31 March 2013

Investments (continued)

Rk T e

The businesses set out below are those that i the opmnion of the directors significantly affected the
Company’s results and net assets dunng the year (* denotes held indirectly through subsidiary)

Country of

mcorporation

BnightHouse Holdings Limited England

BnghHouse Limited* England

Caversham Finance Limited* England

Caversham Insurance Limited* Guemnsey
Caversham Insurance

(Isle of Man) Limited* Isle of Man

Caversham Insurance (Malta) Linmuted* Malta
Caversham Holdings (Malta) Limited * Malta
Caversham Trading Limited* England

Trade and other receivables

Prepaid refinancing professional fees

Trade and other payables

Amountis due to subsidiary undertakings
Other non trade payables
Accrued refinancing professional fees

Principal
achvity

Holding Company
Holding company
Rental of

domestic equipment
Insurance

Insurance

Insurance

Holding company
Rental of

domestic equupment

Percentage

of shares

Shares held
Ordinary 100
Ordinary 100
Ordinary 100
Ordmary 100
Ordinary 100
Ordinary 100
Ordinary 100
Ordinary 100
2013 2012
£000 £000
8,274 -
8,274 -
2013 2012
£000 £000
1,185 856
300 30
8,274 -
9,759 886
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Notes to the company financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Capital and reserves

2013 2012
Allonied, cailed up and filly pmd No £000 No £000
A Ordinary shares of £0 001 each - -~ 5790,720 5
Ordinary shares of £0 01 each - - 215,465 2
B Ordinary shares of £0 01 each - - 299,066 3
C Ordinary shares of £0 01 each - — 190,907 2
D Ordinary shares of £0 01 each - - 79,921 1
E Ordmnary shares of £0 01 each - - 79,921 1

A Ordinary shares of £0 001 each 4,350,000 4 - -
Ordinary shares of £0 001 each 117,500 - - -
B Ordinary shares of £0 01 each 200,000 2 - -
C Ordinary shares of £0 (1 each 100,000 1 - -
D Ordinary shares of £0 01 each 62,500 1 — -
E Ordinary shares of £0 01 each 62,500 1 — -
F Ordinary shares of £500 each i 1 - -
G Ordinary shares of £0 001 each 107,499 - - -
A Preferred shares of £0 0000001 each 6,725,639 - -~ -
B Preferred shares of £0 0000001 cach 86,583 475 - - -
Deferred shares of £0 0000001 each 4,743,992,053 - - -

On 22 November 2012 new Articles of Association were adopted by the Company which resulted 1 the
sub-diviston and re-designation of the existing share capital mto new classes of both Ordmnary and
Preferred Shares as set out below

Details of the share classes held at 31 March 2013 afier the reorgamsation on 22 November 2012 are as
follows -

A Ordinary Shares’ are controlled by VCP VI B (see note 23 Related parties) ‘B Ordinary Shares’, *C
Ordinary Shares’, ‘D Ordmary Shares’, 'E Ordinary Shares’, F Ordinary Shares’, G Ordinary Shares’
and ‘Ordwnary Shares’ are controlted by management { Management Shares’) ‘A Preferred Shares” are
controlled by VCP VI B, ‘B Preferred Shares’ are controlled by VCP V]I B and management and
‘Deferred Shares’ are controlled by the Employee Benefit Trust Dividends are distnibuted first to A
Preferred Shares unti! the maxynum hurdle rate, described 1n the Articles of Association, has been met
Remaining dividend amounts are then distributed to B Preferred Shares untl the maximum hurdle rate has
been met Deferred Shares recesve no dividend distribution All other classes of share are treated equally
for any remaining distnbunon For voung, each class of share holds i aggregate, the % of votes as
follows A Ovdinary 75%, B Ordmary 5%, C Ordinary 5%, D Ordimary 5%, £ Ordwary 5% and F
Ordinary 5% All other classes of share hold no voting nghts I[n the event of a sale of the busmess,
realisation proceeds are allocated 1n the following order To the extent that the hurdle rate exceeds any
previous return of capital A Preferred Shares receive proceeds first Next to the extent that the hurdle rate
exceeds any previous return of caputal B Preferred Shares receive proceeds Deferred Shares receive a
maximum of 1p on a sale of the business Finally any remaimng proceeds are distnbuted equally between
the remaining share classes However, 1n certain circumstances described in the Articles, participation of
Management Shares 1n the proceeds may increase
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Notes to the company financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Capital and reserves (continued)
Details of the share classes held at 31 March 2012 were as follows

‘A Ordinary Shares” were controlled by VCP VI B (see note 23 Related parties) ‘B Ordinary Shares’, ‘C
Ordinary Shares’, ‘D Ordinary Shares’, °‘E Ordinary Shares’ and ‘Ordinary Shares’ were controlled by
management The classes of shares were treated equally for dividends For voting, each class of share held
in aggregate, the % of votes as follows A Ordimary 77 13%, B Ordmary 5%, C Ordinary 5%, D
Ordinary 5%, E Ordimary 5% and Ordinary 2 §7% Under certain circumstances described in the Articles
of Association, B Ordinary, C Ordinary, D Ordinary and E Ordinary shares could be converted into
Ordinary Shares, and the voting nghts of A Ordinary and Ordinary shares adjusted accordingly I[n the
event of sale of the bustness (subject to certain rules described in the Articles of Association) the
partictpation of the management in the proceeds could be increased by converting 2 number of A Ordinary
shares into ‘Deferred shares’ ‘Deferred shares’ would recewve a nomunal amount of £001 for all
“Deferred shares’

Related party transactions

Vision Capital Partners VI B LP (VCP VI B), a Scottish Limited Partnership acting through Haig
Luxembourg Holdco Sarl (Haig Luxembourg HoldCo), a company incorporated in Luxembourg, are
related parties by virtue of the fact that since 18 July 2007 they controlled the majonty of the share capital
of BnghtHouse Group Limited, the largest group of which the Company 1s a member and for which
accounts are drawn up The directors therefore consider VCP VI B and Haig Luxembourg HoldCo Sarl
to be related parties Vision Capital LLP 1s also considered a related party by virtue of the fact that 1t 1s the
investment adviser to the general partner of VCP VI B

Dunng the year, the Company entered into the following with related parties

Amount
owed 1o
related
parties
£000

2013
Subsidiaries 1,185

1,185

Amount
owed to
related
parties
£000
2012
Subsidianes 856

856
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Notes to the company financial statements
at 31 March 2013

Related party transactions (continued)
Other related party transactions

In November 2012, Haig Luxembourg HoldCo, the ultimate parent company, purchased from the
Employee Benefit Trust 707,947 A Preferred Shares

Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

BnightHouse Group Limited (a company incorporated 1n England and Wales) 1s the parent Company of
the largest Group m which the results of the Company are consolidated

The ultimate controlling party 15 Vision Capital Partners VI B LP (VCP VI B), a Scottish Limited
Partnershup

Post balance sheet events

As a pre-requsite of the proposed refinancing anticipated to be completed following the approval of the
financial statements 1t was necessary that the Company re-registered as a public limited company (‘PL.C )
At 31 March 2013 the Company had msufficient share capital and distributable reserves to re-register as a
PLC Thus following the balance sheet date a share reorganisation exercise was implemented which 1s
detailed below

The Company reduced 1ts share premium account {by a reduction of share capital supported by a solvency
statement} by £6m This action resulted n positive net distrnbutable reserves as required for PLC
conversion

A number of share transactions were also implemented m order to increase the share capital of the
Company to at least £50,000

1) A new class of non-voting share of the Company with a nomunal value of £1 ( C Preferred
Shares’} was created

1) 5 members of Semor Management subscribed for 1 C Preferred share each and Haig
Luxembourg Holdco S a r 1 (‘Haig’) subscrnibed for 15 C Preferred Shares at market value

1) The Company carried out a bonus 1ssue to the holders of the C Preferred Shares whereby
2,024 C Preferred Shares werek 1ssued for each C Preferred Share held

) The E Ordinary shares of £0 01 each were transferred to the Employee Benefit Trust These
shares lost their 5% voting rnights

v) A new class of share with 5% voting nghts was created with a nomunal value of £500 (‘H
shares’) One H share was subscribed for at market value

On 22 Apri 2013 BnghtHouse Group Limited was re-registered as BnghtHouse Group Ple
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